#### CITY COUNCIL MINUTES JANUARY 6, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on January 6, 1987 in the City Hall Council Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

Present: E.O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Sara H. Alexander Henry F. Frierson William S. McCain, Jr.

The first item of business was consideration of December 16, 1986 City Council Minutes. A motion made by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the December 16, 1986 City Council Minutes as distributed.

Councilmember McCain announced his resignation of his council seat even though it officially became vacant on December 17, 1986 when he was sworn in as a member of the House of Representatives. He thanked the City for allowing him to serve them for the last five years. He also thanked the dedicated and loyal personnel of both administrations of the City for making council's job much easier. He was proud to serve with current members of the council and especially thanked Mayor Pendarvis for his devotion to the City. Mayor Pendarvis stated that it was a pleasure to serve with Councilmember McCain and wished him the best of luck in his future endeavors.

City Administrator Smith read the Resolution commending Thomas A. Boland, Sr. for service to the City as the Law Enforcement Complex Commission Representative. A motion made by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the Resolution that was requested at the December 16, 1986 City Council Meeting.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the second reading of an ordinance on each of the following properties:

- (A) Consideration of rezoning request from A-2 Residential
- to B-1 Business (one lot located at 160 Elliott, SE)
  (B) Consideration of rezoning request from A-2 Residential to B-1 Business (three lots located at corner of Fair, NE and Louis, NE)
- (C) Consideration of rezoning request from A-2 to Office-Institutional Apartments (three lots located at corner of Summers, NE and Amelia, NE)

City Administrator Smith discussed alternatives for the airport terminal situation. Smith noted that the City could continue to rent the office trailer for the next sixty (60) months at \$309.75 a month which would total \$18,585.00 or purchase a trailer for \$8,000.00 or repair the terminal building for approximately \$97,000.00. Smith pointed out that we received \$49,700.00 on an insurance refund and that we would be eligible for 50% grant to cover the additional renovation cost. A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved letting bids to hire a construction manager to renovate the existing terminal.

A motion made by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously agreed to maintain and operate the NDB Beacon, recently located off Cannon Bridge Road in Hidden Acres Community and allowing City Administrator Smith to sign any necessary documents associated with the project. CITY COUNCIL MINUTES January 6, 1987 Page 2

Mr. W. W. Dukes and Mr. Glenn Lott explained the procedures for financing a new airport runway. They stated that the monies the City would pay (approximately \$75,000.00 at present) would be applied toward matching discretionary funds that usually become available at the government's fiscal year end. If the project is approved then it would probably be completed in phases. A motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the execution of engineer service agreement (also known as amendment #4) and to file an application for 50% matching state funds.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously agreed to appoint Harry McCullohs to be the City's Representative for the Law Enforcement Complex.

Department of Public Utilities Manager, Ted Johnson brought no utility matters before council but requested an executive session.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved entering into an executive session for administrative briefing.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted, Sunso Carol A. Brunson City Clerk

# 306

## RESOLUTION

A RESOLUTION COMMITTING THE REQUIRED MATCH FOR THE 1987 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT APPLICATION TO THE GOVERNOR'S OFFICE, DIVISION OF COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS.

WHEREAS, the City of Orangeburg has identified its community development needs; and

WHEREAS, the City has identified housing rehabilitation and neighborhood revitalization of a significantly blighted low income area in the City of Orangeburg to be a high priority community development need; and

WHEREAS, the City of Orangeburg has applied for assistance under the Governor's Small Cities Community Development Block Grant program, and

WHEREAS, the City of Orangeburg is aware that a 10 percent committment in matching funds is required for the grant award.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Orangeburg is committed to making the 10 % match required in the form of 5% cash and force account, and 5% in-kind.

Mavo

Members of Council

ATTES arol A. Brunson

City Clerk

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES JANUARY 20, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on January 20, 1987 in the City Hall Council Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

Present: E.O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Sara H. Alexander Henry F. Frierson

The first item of business was consideration of January 6, 1987 City Council Minutes. A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the January 6, 1987 City Council Minutes as received.

Mr. Bernard Haire appeared before City Council representing his brother,Lawrence Haire of 202 Maxcy Street. Mr. Haire stated that his brother had paid for cable service on December 5, 1986 to be connected on December 18, 1986. When the service representative arrived on December 18, 1986 to install the cable, he found that there were no cable lines on Maxcy Street. As of January 20, 1987 Mr. Haire has not received a refund. Councilmembers agreed to have Attorney Walsh to write a letter to Cable TV Service to point out the terms of the franchise agreement. City Administrator Smith said that he had talked with Macon Sheppard of Orangeburg Cable TV and was told that cable was scheduled to be installed on Maxcy Street in the spring.

ABB132

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the acceptance of the low bid of \$9,395.00 for the replacement of stage curtains in the Stevenson Auditorium.

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the third and final reading of an ordinance on each of the following properties:

- (A) Consideration of rezoning request from A-2 Residential
- to B-1 Business (one lot located at 160 Elliott, SE) (B) Consideration of rezoning request from A-2 Residential
- B) Consideration of rezoning request from A-2 Residential to B-1 Business (three lots located at corner of Fair, NE and Louis, NE)
- (C) Consideration of rezoning request from A-2 to Office-Institutional Apartments (three lots located at corner of Summers, NE and Amelia, NE)

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved an ordinance to amend Section 29-30 Of The Zoning Ordinance. Mayor Pendarvis stated that he wanted a study on the zoning ordinances of the City. City Administrator Smith stated that he had talked with Lower Savannah Council of Governments and they had quoted him a price of approximately \$15,000.00 to update the comprehensive plan, zoning ordinances and maps. City Administrator Smith stated that he would have a representative from Lower Savannah Council of Governments at the next City Council Meeting on February 3, 1987.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved to adopt a resolution stating that the City will contribute 10% matching funds if Community Development Grant is received. City Administrator Smith pointed out to Council that it is necessary to have a Community Development Public Hearing on January 27, 1987 at 7:00 P.M. in City Hall Council Chambers.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the appointment of Mr. Charles E. "Joey" Taylor, III as the new member of the Planning Commission to replace Mr. T. K. Blythewood with term expiring November 7, 1987. CITY COUNCIL MINUTES January 20, 1987 Page 2

City Administrator Smith then requested an executive session.

Under matters pertaining to Department of Public Utilities, a motion made by Councilmember Alexander, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the first reading of an ordinance to amend chapters 6, 9, 17 and 20 into one ordinance entitled "Utilities" which will combine all functions of the Department of Public Utilities.

A motion by Councilmember Alexander, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved entering into an executive session for an administrative briefing.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned noting that the February 3, 1987 City Council Meeting would be at 5:00 P.M. instead of 7:00 P.M. in City Hall Council Chambers.

Respectfully submitted, Brunson Carol City Clerk

308

~

## <u>RESOLUTION</u>

WHEREAS, T. K. Bythewood served the City of Orangeburg as a member of the Planning Commission from November 7, 1967 until September 15, 1986 and as Chairman of the Planning Commission from December 8, 1977 until September 15, 1986.

WHEREAS, He through his faithful service and leadership contributed greatly to the successful operation of the Planning Commission; and

WHEREAS, The City Council, in recognition of the fine contribution rendered the City of Orangeburg and the Planning Commission, wants to inscribe on the records its appreciation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and Members of Council, in Council assembled, do officially take cognizance of the faithful service rendered to the City of Orangeburg by T. K. Bythewood in the capacities of Planning Commission member for eighteen (18) years and ten (10) months, and Planning Commission Chairman for eight (8) years and nine (9) months and commend him for a job well done.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution, in appreciation of his devotion of duty to the City of Orangeburg, be placed in the minute book of the City and a copy furnished to T. K. Bythewood in recognition of his services.

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Orangeburg, State of South Carolina, this third day of February, 1987.

Mayor

Members of Council

Attest: Clerk

#### CITY COUNCIL MINUTES FEBRUARY 3, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on February 3, 1987 in the City Hall Council Chambers at 5:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

> Present: E.O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Sara H. Alexander Henry F. Frierson

The first item of business was consideration of January 20, 1987 City Council Minutes. A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander unanimously approved the January 20, 1987 City Council Minutes as received.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander unanimously approved the low bid of \$7,292.25 for the purchase of fifteen (15) new front loading sleeve type containers for the Public Works Department.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the reinstatement of the following:

BOARD OF APPEALS--Marion Mack--4 year term expiring 2-6-91.

ABB132

PLANNING COMMISSION--Eugene Montgomery--4 year term expiring 2-6-91. Tom Waters--4 year term expiring 2-6-91.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the issuing of certificates of appointment and appreciation for Boards and Commissions along with a letter signed by all members of Council.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the Resolution for Mr. T.K. Blythewood--Planning Commission 11-67 through 9-86 and Planning Commission Chairman 12-77 through 9-86.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the postponement of consideration of mobile home park (Crepe Myrtle) on Sprinkle, SE.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the second reading of an ordinance to amend chapters 6, 9, 17 and 20 into one ordinance entitled "Utilities" which will combine all functions of the Department of Public Utilities.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully\_submitted. A. Brunson Cárol City Clerk

309

#### CITY COUNCIL MINUTES FEBRUARY 17, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on February 17, 1987 in the City Hall Council Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

Present: E.O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Sara H. Alexander Henry F. Frierson

The first item of business was consideration of February 3, 1987 City Council Minutes. A motion made by Councilmember Alexander, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the February 3, 1987 City Council Minutes as distributed.

An appearance was made by Mr. Roy Chandler of the Uptown Merchant's Association. He spoke in protest of the Ku Klux Klan march on February 7, 1987 because of the effect it had on uptown merchant's businesses. He requested an ordinance prohibiting any march or parade that would be detrimental to businesses within the City of Orangeburg. Mayor Pendarvis stated that council was already in the process of seeing what could be legally done to regulate marches and parades. Councilmember Frierson pointed out that in cities where permits have been denied there have been lawsuits. He also stated that because people stayed home the Ku Klux Klan's efforts were thwarted.

An appearance was made by Ellen Easterlin of the Orangeburg Arts Council. She stated that the Orangeburg Arts Council received a \$12,000 grant from The National Endowment of Arts. This is a local government grant of which she is requesting \$6,000 from the city. This grant would be used to expand programs to schools, senior citizens, Mental Health and handicapped individuals. The deadline for this grant is June 1, 1987.

An appearance was made by Mr. Eric Thompson, Lower Savannah Council of Government's Representative. He submitted a proposal requested by council for updating our Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Ordinances. The last Comprehensive Plan was completed in January 1979. He did not expect the cost to exceed \$15,000. Coucilmember Frierson requested that Mr. Thompson supply a list of planning consultants in the state and any other information needed to pursue updating the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Ordinances.

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the second reading of an ordinance to amend section 29-30 Of The Zoning Ordinances.

Parks and Recreation Director, Marion Smith, submitted the proposed budget for the 1987 S.C. Festival of Roses. A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the 1987 proposed budget.

City Administrator Smith presented information for the hospitalization insurance renewal. The city had experienced a short fall amounting to \$213,133 which has presented the need to revise the city's insurance policy. Several options were submitted but there was a need for further discussion. A special meeting was requested.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the low bid of \$32,771.72 for the purchase of three (3) police cars.

A letter from Macon Sheppard of Jones Intercable was presented to council with the March 1, 1987 rate changes. They wanted to know if the city wanted to stay with 3% franchise fee or increase it to 5%. The franchise fee would be listed on the customer's statement. A motion by Councilmember Alexander, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved to postpone. CITY COUNCIL MINUTES FEBRUARY 17, 1987 PAGE 2

A letter from Dean Campbell, District Engineer and Administrator of S.C. Department of Highways and Public Transportation, was presented to council with a list of seven (7) streets that are scheduled to be upgraded for placement into the state highway system.

and a second second

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the mobile home park (Crepe Myrtle) on Sprinkle, SE. Mayor Pro Tem Salley abstained due to personal involvement.

City Administrator Smith then requested an executive session for administrative briefing.

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Mayor Pendarvis, unanimously approved the third reading of an ordinance to amend chapters 6, 9, 17, and 20 into one ordinance entitled "Utilities" which will combine all functions of the Department of Public Utilities.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved entering into an executive session for administrative briefing.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted,

çarol A. Brunson City Clerk

1

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on March 3, 1987 in City Hall Council Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

PRESENT: E. O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Sara H. Alexander Henry F. Frierson

A public hearing was held on each of the following properties:

- (a) Consideration of classification request to classify D-1 Industrial (property at intersection of Sprinkle, SE and Boulevard, SE). No discussion.
- (b) Consideration of rezoning request from A-1 Residential to Office-Institutional-Apartments (corner of Caw Caw, NW and Broughton, NW). Mr. William Sutcliffe spoke in favor of rezoning. Ms. Kitty Reed of 2225 Broughton, NW, Mr. J.D. Kinsey of 2195 Broughton and Mr. Zane Reed of 2225 Broughton, NW spoke in opposition of the rezoning request.
- (c) Consideration of rezoning request from A-2 Residential to B-1 Business (corner of Henley, NE and Mary NE). A Southern Bell Representative spoke in favor of rezoning.
- (d) Consideration of rezoning request from A-2 Residential to B-1 Business (one lot on 500 block of Henley, NE). A Southern Bell Representative spoke in favor of rezoning.

.

- (e) Consideration of rezoning request from A-1 Residential to B-1 Business (one lot on 500 block of Amelia, NE). Ms. Jo Anne Webster Walling spoke in favor of the rezoning request. Ms. Dorothy Hartzog and Ms. Elizabeth Jefferson of the Department of Mental Retardation spoke in opposition to the request because the Department of Mental Retardation leases the property next door which houses eight (8) retarded men. Ms. Barbara Zellerino of the Planning Commission described the adjacent property stating that the entire area needs to be considered.
- (f) Consideration of rezoning request from A-1 Residential to B-1 Business (one lot on 900 block of Carolina, NE). Ms. Jo Anne Webster Walling spoke in favor of the rezoning request.
- (g) Consideration of rezoning request from A-2 Residential to B-1 Business (one lot on 500 block of Louis, NE). No discussion.

The first item of business was consideration of the February 17, 1987 City Council Minutes. A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the February 17, 1987 City Council Minutes as distributed.

An appearance was made by Ms. Clara Boone protesting the ticket she received for disregarding a traffic signal. Ms. Boone said that the light was on caution and that she felt she could not safely stop. Council stated that they had no authority over a judge's decision but she had other courts in which to make appeals.

A motion by Councilmember Alexander, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the Planning Commission's favorable recommendation to classify D-1 Industrial (property at intersection of Sprinkle, SE and Bloulevard, SE). Mayor Pro Tem Salley abstained from voting due to personal involvement.

312

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES MARCH 3, 1987 PAGE 2

ABB132

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Counilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the Planning Commission's recommendation of denial of the rezoning request from A-1 Residential to Office-Institutional-Apartments (corner of Caw Caw, NE and Broughton, NW).

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the Planning Commission's favorable recommendation of rezoning request from A-2 Residential to B-1 Business (one lot on the 500 block of Henley, NE).

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the Planning Commission's denial of rezoning request from A-2 Residential to B-1 Business (one lot on 500 block of Amelia, NE). A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the initiation of a study on the entire area.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the rezoning request from A-1 Residential to B-1 Business (one lot on 500 block of Louis, NE).

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the third reading of an ordinance to amend section 29-30 Of The Zoning Ordinance.

A motion was made by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, for the Cable TV franchise fee to remain at 3% with Councilmember Frierson and Mayor Pro Tem Salley opposing. A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Frierson for the Cable TV franchise fee to be increased to 5% with Mayor Pendarvis and Councilmember Alexander opposing. A motion was made by Mayor Pendarvis to collect no franchise fee. This motion died for lack of a second.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved to increase insurance rates 10% with three (3) changes in the current policy. Council approved paying Aetna \$51,249 lump sum payment with the city's share to be paid out of reserve funds.

Mr. Don Eubanks of EuMac Real Estate Company requested an exit into the city parking lot between Russell Street and Orange Street. A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved granting this request pending approval of Mr. James C. Sikes, owner of the lot.

A letter from Mr. Edward V. Fenton was presented to city council expressing his concern over the excessive speed on North Boulevard.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved matching \$6,000 to a grant of \$12,000 from the National Endowment of Arts to the Orangeburg Arts Council.

City Administrator Smith then requested an executive session for administrative briefing.

Department of Public Utilities Manager, Ted Johnson, brought no utility matters before council.

Mr. Bernard Haire stated that his brother still had not received a refund from Cable TV for services not rendered. Attorney Walsh stated that he had written two letters concerning this to Cable TV. A motion was made by Mayor Pendarvis to take court action against Jones Intercable. This motion died for lack of a second.

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES MARCH 3, 1987 PAGE 3

A motion was made by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved entering into an executive session for administrative briefing.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted, Ż Carol A. Brunson City Clerk

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on March 17, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

PRESENT: E.O. Pendarvis, Mayor Everette W. Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Henry F. Frierson Sara H. Alexander

A public hearing was held on acceptance of a proposed street (Moseley Street extension). Mr. Barney Houser, co-owner of the affected properties spoke in favor of the street extension. There was no opposition to this proposal.

The first item of business was consideration of the March 3, 1987 City Council Minutes. A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the March 3, 1987 City Council Minutes as distributed.

An appearance was made by Mr. Jerry Lawson. He stated that he had tried to deposit his utility bill in the night depository at the back of the Department of Public Utilities on March 2, 1987 and for some unknown reason was unable to get the envelope into the depository. He then went to the Department of Public Utilities on March 3, 1987 to pay this bill and was told that he would have to pay the gross amount. He stated that he was unaware that there was a night depository at the front of the Department of Public Utilities and was asking that some exception be made to his case as he felt he did not owe the gross amount since he had tried to deposit his bill on March 2, 1987. Mayor Pendarvis told him that the city has had requests of this nature over the years and that the city has established rules that must be followed and that no exception could be made.

**ABB132** 

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the second reading of ordinances on the following properties:

- (a) Consideration of classification request to classify D-1 Industrial (property at intersection of Sprinkle, SE and Boulevard, SE).
- (b) Consideration of rezoning request from A-2 Residential to B-1 Business (corner of Henley, NE and Mary NE).
- (c) Consideration of rezoning request from A-2 Residential to B-1 Business (one lot on 500 block of Henley, NE).
- (d) Consideration of rezoning request from A-1 Residential to B-1 Business (one lot on 900 block of Carolina, NE).
- (e) Consideration of rezoning request from A-2 Residential to B-1 Business (one lot on 500 block of Louis, NE).

Mayor Pro Tem Salley abstained from voting on item (A) due to personal involvement.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved to re-appoint D.D. Salley, III for a six (6) year term on the Election Commission expiring 3-31-93.

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the extension of Moseley Street.

A Resolution and watch was presented to Mr. Sinclair Grant, retired employee of the Public Works Department for his twenty (20) years and four (4) months of service to the city.

316

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES MARCH 17, 1987 PAGE TWO

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the acceptance of low bid of \$27,140 for the purchase of one loader back hoe.

Department of Public Utilities Manager, Ted Johnson, brought no utility matters before council.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted, unse Brunson Carbi Ά. City Clerk

#### RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, Sinclair Grant became an employee of the City of Orangeburg Public Works Department on October 10, 1966, and faithfully served the City until February 16, 1987; and

WHEREAS, He, through his long and faithful service contributed greatly to the successful operation of the City of Orangeburg Public Works Department; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, in recognition of the fine contribution rendered the City of Orangeburg, wants to inscribe on the records its appreciation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and Members of Council, in Council assembled, do officially take cognizance of the faithful service rendered to the Public Works Department of the City of Orangeburg by Sinclair Grant in the capacities in which he served for the past twenty (20) years and four (4) months, and commend him for a job well done.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution, in appreciation of his devotion of duty to the City of Orangeburg, be placed in the minute book of the City and a copy furnished to Mr. Grant in recognition of his services.

**PASSED** by the City Council of the City of Orangeburg, State of South Carolina, this seventeenth day of March, 1987.

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES APRIL 7, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on April 7, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

PRESENT: E.O. Pendarvis, Mayor Everette W. Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Henry F. Frierson Sara H. Alexander Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

City Administrator Smith reported the following results of the special election held on March 17, 1987:

Forrest O. Blunt 295 Herbert W. Bradley, Jr. 1,357 Other 7

Herbert W. Bradley, Jr. was then sworn in as the new councilmember by the City Attorney, James Walsh, Jr.

A motion by Councilmember Alexander, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the March 17, 1987 City Council Minutes as distributed.

ABB132

An appearance was made by Mr. Macon Sheppard to update council on the activities of Jones Intercable, Inc., since it was acquired from Orangeburg Cable TV on November 25, 1986. Mr. Sheppard said that the top priority areas for construction are the Whittaker Parkway, Quicktown, Rowesville Road and the Charleston Road areas. He said that they were working on areas and not by individual streets or houses. Mr. Sheppard then stated that on February 26, 1987 he received a letter from DPU returning the pole permit money for the Whittaker Parkway construction along with a directive stating that DPU was reserving an additional twelve (12) inches of space on poles. Because of the additional cost this would cause, Mr. Sheppard wanted to continue to install cable as they have for nineteen or twenty years and move the cable as space is needed by the city. Council took no action on this request.

Mayor Pendarvis introduced a resolution to direct DPU to conduct a feasible study concerning construction and operation of CATV System for the city's and general public's need. This motion seconded by Councilmember Alexander, and unanimously approved by council.

The next item of business being the third reading of ordinances on the following properties:

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the request to classify D-1 Industrial (property at intersection of Sprinkle, SE and Boulevard, SE). Mayor Pro Tem Salley abstained from voting due to personal involvement.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the rezoning request from A-2 Residential to B-1 Business (corner of Henley, NE and Mary, NE).

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the rezoning request from A-2 Residential to B-1 Business (one lot on 900 block of Carolina, NE).

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the rezoning request from A-1 Residential to B-1 Business (one lot on 900 block of Louis, NE).

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the rezoning request from A-2 Residential to B-1 Business (one lot on 500 block of Louis, NE). 318 CFTY COUNCIL MINUTES APRIL 7, 1987 PAGE 2

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the low bid of \$38,728.40 for a brush loading unit to be used in the Public Works Department.

Council considered a request from Mr. Cliff Morgan to study the needs of a traffic light at the intersection of Bennett and Columbia Road. City Administrator Smith was instructed to contact the SC Highway Department on this matter.

DPU Manager, Ted Johnson introduced an ordinance to protect the health, welfare and safety of the citizens of Orangeburg during periods of drought and/or other water supply crisis. A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the first reading of this ordinance.

DPU Manager, Johnson, informed council that South Carolina Electric and Gas Company had filed for a rate decrease of approximately \$530,000 on April 6, 1987 and he wants to pass this rate reduction on to the customers when it goes into effect. This reduction will be retroactive.

Mayor Pendarvis informed council that with Will McCain's departure there was a vacancy on the Intergovernmental Affairs Commission sponsored by the Orangeburg County Chamber of Commerce. A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the appointment of Herbert W. Bradley, Jr., to fill this position.

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved the appointment of Mayor Pro Tem Salley as one of the trustees for the City of Orangeburg Fireman's Fund. He will replace Will McCain.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully, submitted, Cateol A. Brunson City Clerk

For One Councilmember -- Held on March 17, 1987

We, the duly appointed Commissioners of Election for the City of Orangeburg, having received the report of the Managers of Election who had charge of the election held in the City of Orangeburg on March 17, 1987, for the purpose of electing one (1) Councilmember, and having had delivered into our charge the ballot boxes with the ballots sealed therein, met at the City Hall on Thursday, March 19, 1987; no person appeared before you Commissioners with any statement or request in regard to the said election, and the following is the tabulated vote received by the candidates at said election:

#### FOR COUNCILMEMBERS:

Forrest	ο.	Blunt		295	votes
Herbert	W.	Bradley,	Jr.	1,351	votes
Other		_		7	votes

Having received no contests, your Commissioners therefore hereby declare that the said Herbert W. Bradley, Jr. has been elected as Councilmember for the City of Orangeburg; to fill the unexpired term of four (4) years in accordance with the law.

VIII, Salley, Chairman Ħ. Carol Ri 7-1-

Harold I. Robinson

Municipal Election Commission for City of Orangeburg, South Carolina

Jackson, Ja James B. Municipal Clerk to Election Commission

Sworn before me this the  $19^{++}$  day of

Thuch \_\_\_**,** 1987.

Paulitte J. Kup Notary Public, S.C.

My Commission Expires My Commission Expires September 13, 1987

State of South Carolina,

County of Orangeburg.

I, Herbert W. Bradley, Jr., Councilman of the City of Orangeburg, do solemnly swear that I will equally, fairly and impartially, in the best of my ability and skill, exercise the trust reposed in me and I will use my best endeavors to preserve the peace and carry into effect according to the law for the purposes for which I have been elected.

I do further solemnly swear that I will at all times endeavor to secure and maintain for the City an honest and efficient government in every particular, with an eye single to the public welfare.

I do further solemnly swear that I am duly qualified, according to the constitution of this State, to exercise the duties of the office to which I have been elected and that I will, to the best of my ability, discharge the duties thereof and preserve, protect and defend the Constitution of this State and of the United States, So Help Me God!

Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

Sworn to before me this 7th

day of April, 1987

man Carol A. Brunson

Notary Public, SC

My Commission expires 6-16-93

#### RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the City of Orangeburg has determined to investigate the needs of a City-owned Cable TV Service; and

WHEREAS, Ted M. Johnson, Jr., is the manager for the City-owned Department of Public Utilities; and

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Utilities manager is responible for the administering of City-owned utilities.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the said manager be fully empowered to conduct a feasibility study concerning the construction and operation of a CATV System for the City's and general public's needs.

DONE AND RATIFIED this seventh day of April, 1987.

MAYOR le AL MEMBERS OF COUNCIL

ATTEŚT/: CITY CLERK

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES APRIL 21, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on April 21, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

PRESENT: E.O. Pendarvis, Mayor Everette W. Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Henry F. Frierson Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

ABSENT: Sara H. Alexander

2 0

m

5

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved the April 7, 1987 City Council Minutes as distributed.

An appearance was made by Mr. Macon Sheppared of Jones Intercable. He was requesting a copy of a draft of changes prepared by the city attorney concerning the contract between the city and Jones Intercable. He was told that he would probably receive a draft tomorrow (4-22-87).

A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the low bid of \$15,768.86 for the lights for two (2) soccer fields at Hillcrest and Adden Street Ball Park. City Administrator Smith informed council that this was just the equipment and did not include the installation. Councilmember Frierson wanted to know if the Department of Public Utilities could help with the installation. DPU, Manager, Ted Johnson, said that he would be glad to help out if he could and if his staff would be able to perform the work.

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved an Anti-litter Resolution declaring Saturday, April 25, 1987 as "Clean Up Day in the City of Orangeburg".

Council considered the offer of sale of the 1951 American La France Pumper Truck to Stone Container Corporation. Fire Chief Inabinet said that it would help the city because of the type of fires that occur at Stone Container. City Administrator Smith stated that this was an exceptional case and bids had not been requested. Council unanimously approved the sale to Stone Container after City Attorney Walsh investigates the legality of the sale.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Mayor Pendarvis, unanimously approved the following appointees to the Grievance Committee:

Carol A. Brunson,	Chairman	1 year
Jay Fields		2 years
Kenneth Mitchum		2 years
Julius Frederick		3 years
Jay Turner		3 years

City Administrator Smith requested an executive session for legal briefing.

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved the second reading of an ordinance to protect the health, welfare and safety of citizens of Orangeburg during periods of drought and/or other water supply crisis. 320 CITY COUNCIL MINUTES APRIL 21, 1987 PAGE 2

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Mayor Pendarvis, unanimously approved entering into an executive session for legal briefing.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully, submitted, Êl ( Carol A. Brunson

City Clerk

#### STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

## $\underline{\mathbf{R}} \ \underline{\mathbf{E}} \ \underline{\mathbf{S}} \ \underline{\mathbf{O}} \ \underline{\mathbf{L}} \ \underline{\mathbf{U}} \ \underline{\mathbf{T}} \ \underline{\mathbf{I}} \ \underline{\mathbf{O}} \ \underline{\mathbf{N}}$

CITY OF ORANGEBURG

WHEREAS, litter from all sources is a highly visible problem in South Carolina and the City of Orangeburg that adversely affects the scenic beauty, economy and quality of life for all citizens of the City as well as visitors and potential residents and investors, and

WHEREAS, the control of litter has been effectively demonstrated in a number of cities and communities in South Carolina.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Orangeburg City Council, in conjunction with the Orangeburg County Chamber of Commerce - Community Betterment Committee and the County Trash Watch Committee, officially declares Saturday, April 25, 1987 as "CLEAN UP DAY IN THE CITY OF ORANGEBURG".

ADOPTED this 21st day of April, 1987 in Orangeburg, South Carolina.

U COUNCIL MEMBERS OF

ATTESA CITY CLERK

## RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED By the Mayor and Members of Council of the City of Orangeburg, South Carolina, in Council assembled, and by authority of the same:

That the rates of the Department of Public Utilities of the City of Orangeburg pertaining to Electricity and Natural Gas, as heretofore adopted be, and the same are hereby repealed, and in lieu thereof, the Electric Rates and Natural Gas Rates of the Department of Public Utilities of the City of Orangeburg, hereto attached, be and they are hereby, declared effective and in full force on June 1, 1987 billings.

PASSED by the City Council, in Council assembled at Orangeburg, South Carolina, this fifth day of May A.D., 1987.

Signed: Z.C

Shelen

ATTEST City Clerk and Treasurer

Exhibit B

#### CONTRACT RATE

CONTRACT RATE: FOR PURCHASE OF ELECTRIC POWER AND ENERGY FROM GREENWOOD MILLS LINER PLANT

CHARACTER OF SERVICE: The Plant shall supply power and energy to the Department in a manner which will not degrade the electric service or jeopardize the safety of the Department or electric customers of the Department.

NET MONTHLY RATE:

Demand Charge	\$10.40/Kw of billing demand
Energy Charge	2.418¢/Kwh of energy delivered

- BILLING DEMAND: The billing demand from the Plant (calculated to the nearest whole Kw) shall be determined as the power supplied to the Department by the Plant coincident with the Department's monthly maximum demand as determined by South Carolina Electric & Gas Company (SCE&G) for the purpose of billing the Department for the purchase of power under FERC Rate Schedule WR or its successor. In the event the Department's Billing Demand for purchases from SCE&G is in excess of the Department's monthly maximum demand from SCE&G due to the effect of applying a billing ratchet or power factor adjustment, the Billing Demand herein applicable to the Plant shall be proportionately determined.
- ADJUSTMENT FOR CHANGES IN PURCHASE POWER COST: The above stated demand and energy charges are based on purchased power (exclusive of high voltage discount) and energy charges to the Department by SCE&G of \$10.40/Kw and 2.418¢/Kwh, respectively. To the extent that the actual cost to the Department of power (exclusive of high voltage discount) and energy purchased from SCE&G differs due to change in SCE&G's Rate WR, or due to application of SCE&G's Wholesale Fuel Cost Adjustment provision or for any other reason, the above monthly rate shall be adjusted proportionately.

#### GAS RATE

#### No. 1 - RESIDENTIAL SERVICE (Code 3A)

APPLICABLE: To a single family dwelling unit or individual dwelling units in apartment structures or other multi-family residential structures supplied by individual gas meters. This schedule is not applicable to a residence which is used for commercial, professional, or any other enterprise unless the domestic use can be separately metered.

Service Charge \$3.00 per bill per month

Commodity Charge:

First 20,000 C.F. @ \$0.5867 per 100 C.F. per month All in excess of 20,000 C.F. @ \$0.5506 per 100 C.F. per month

#### MINIMUM

The monthly minimum charge shall be the Monthly Service Charge as stated above.

Note: "General Terms and Conditions" in effect apply to above. See Article IV-A, Item Number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount on above. CURRENT SURCHARGE WILL BE APPLIED TO THIS RATE SCHEDULE.

Effective: June 1, 1987 Billing

81

## GAS RATE

NO. 2 - GENERAL SERVICE (CODE 3B)

APPLICABLE: To any non-domestic and/or commercial or industrial customer having requirements of less than 400,000 CF per month.

SERVICE CHARGE: \$3.00 per bill per month

COMMODITY CHARGE:

 First
 20,000 C.F. @ \$0.5867 per 100 C.F. per month

 Next
 80,000 C.F. @ \$0.5506 per 100 C.F. per month

 All in excess of 100,000 C.F. @ \$0.5266 per 100 C.F. per month

## Minimum

The monthly minimum charge shall be the Monthly Service Charge as stated above.

Note: "General Terms and Conditions" in effect apply to above. See Article IV-A, Item Number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount on above. CURRENT SURCHARGE WILL BE APPLIED TO THIS RATE SCHEDULE.

## GAS RATE

#### NO. 3 - LARGE GENERAL SERVICE (CODE 3C)

APPLICABLE: To any non-domestic and/or commercial or industrial customer having requirements in excess of 400,000 CF per month.

COMMODITY CHARGE:

First	40 MCF	6	\$5.47584	per MCF per month
Next	60 MCF	6	\$5.25761	per MCF per month
Next	400 MCF	6	\$5.09412	per MCF per month
Next	1,500 MCF	6	\$5.03963	per MCF per month
All in excess of	2,000 MCF	6	\$4.98513	per MCF per month

Minimum

\$17.00 per month

Note: "General Terms and Conditions" in effect apply to above. See Article IV-A, Item Number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount on above. CURRENT SURCHARGE WILL BE APPLIED TO THIS RATE SCHEDULE.

#### GAS RATE

## NO. 4 - INTERRUPTIBLE "A" (CODE 3D)

APPLICABLE: To all consumers using a minimum of 50,000 cubic feet per 24-hour day, and who has adequate stand-by facilities.

First 2,000 MCF @ \$4.87045 per MCF per month All in excess of 2,000 MCF @ 4.81940 per MCF per month

#### Minimum

\$277.78 per month

Department of Public Utilities retains the right to discontinue interruptible service on a one-hour notice for as long as gas is necessary for firm customers.

Note: "General Terms and Conditions" in effect apply to above. See Article IV-A, Item Number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount on above. CURRENT SURCHARGE WILL BE APPLIED TO THIS RATE SCHEDULE.

#### GAS RATE

## NO. 5 - INTERRUPTIBLE "B" (CODE 3E)

APPLICABLE: To all consumers using a minimum of 20,000 cubic feet per 24-hour day, and who has adequate stand-by facilities.

All Gas Consumption \$4.98513 per MCF per month

## Minimum

\$111.11 per month

Department of Public Utilities retains the right to discontinue interruptible service on a one-hour notice for as long as gas is necessary for firm customers.

Note: "General Terms and Conditions" in effect apply to above. See Article IV-A, Item Number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount on above. CURRENT SURCHARGE WILL BE APPLIED TO THIS RATE SCHEDULE.

## GAS RATE

FIRM - (CODE 3S)

APPLICABLE: To Orangeburg Plant Greenwood Mills for process.

Demand	\$2.419	per	MCF
Commodity	\$4.68440	per	MMBTU

Minimum

1

.

Demand Charge

Note: "General Terms and Conditions" in effect apply to above. See Article IV-A, Item Number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount on above. CURRENT SURCHARGE WILL BE APPLIED TO THIS RATE SCHEDULE.

### ELECTRIC RATE

NO. 1 - RESIDENTIAL SERVICE (Code 2A)

- APPLICABLE: To a single-family dwelling unit supplied through one meter for domestic use. This schedule is not applicable to a residence which is used for commercial, professional, or any other enterprise unless the domestic use can be separately metered, in which case this schedule is applicable to the metered domestic portion of energy use only.
- CHARACTER OF SERVICE: Alternating current, 60 hertz. Voltage and phase at the option of the Company.
- GROSS MONTHLY RATE: (See Article IV-A, Item number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount)

#### Standard Rate

First	50	kwhr	6	\$0.1356	per kwhr
Next	200	kwhr	6	\$0.0740	per kwhr
All in excess of	250	kwhr	6	\$0.0631	per kwhr

#### Minimm

, ,

\$6.38 per meter per month.

Note: "General Terms and Conditions" in effect apply to above. See Article IV-A, Item Number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount on above. CURRENT FUEL CHARGE WILL BE APPLIED TO THIS RATE SCHEDULE.

#### ELECTRIC RATE

NO. 1-A - RESIDENTIAL SERVICE - ALL ELECTRIC (Code 2B)

- APPLICABLE: To a single-family private dwelling unit supplied through one meter for all domestic use, including water heating, space heating, and air conditioning, where electric service is the only source of energy for the dwelling unit, except energy provided by wood-burning fireplaces used primarily for aesthetic purposes. This schedule is not applicable to a residence which is used for commercial purposes. If the customer's wiring is so arranged that electric service for domestic and nondomestic purposes can be metered separately, this schedule is applicable to that portion used for domestic purposes only.
- CHARACTER OF SERVICE: Alternating current, 60 hertz. Voltage and phase at the option of the Company.

GROSS MONTHLY RATE: (See Article IV-A, Item number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount)

Standard Rates Summer Season

First50 kwhr @ \$0.1356 per kwhrNext200 kwhr @ \$0.0740 per kwhrAll in excess of 250 kwhr @ \$0.0631 per kwhr

Winter Season

First			50	kwhr	9	\$0.1356	per	kwhr
Next			200	kwhr	6	\$0.0740	per	kwhr
Next			750	kwhr	6	\$0.0631	per	kwhr
All in	excess	of	1,000	kwhr	6	\$0.0520	per	kwhr

Minimum

\$6.38 per meter per month.

The winter season begins with Cycle 7 bills dated November and ends with Cycle 6 bills dated May. The summer season applies for all other bills rendered during the year.

Note: "General Terms and Conditions" in effect apply to above. See Article IV-A, Item Number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount on above. CURRENT FUEL CHARGE WILL BE APPLIED TO THIS RATE SCHEDULE.

#### ELECTRIC RATE

NO. 2 - GENERAL SERVICE (Code 2C)

- APPLICABLE: To any nondomestic and/or commercial or industrial customer for all power and energy uses at any one location where service of a single character is taken through one meter at one point of delivery for which no specific schedule is provided. This schedule is not applicable to breakdown, standby, supplementary, resale or shared electric service. All temporary service will be billed under this schedule. This rate will not be available for any new account which has a demand in excess of 300 KW.
- CHARACIER OF SERVICE: Alternating current, 60 hertz. Voltage and phase at the option of the Company.

GROSS MONTHLY RATE: (See Article IV-A, Item Number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount)

Standard RateFirst50 kwhr @ \$0.1334 per kwhrNext100 kwhr @ \$0.1221 per kwhrNext200 kwhr @ \$0.0988 per kwhrNext2,650 kwhr @ \$0.0750 per kwhrAll in excess of 3,000 kwhr @ \$0.0660 per kwhr

#### Minimum

\$6.38 per meter per month.

Note: "General Terms and Conditions" in effect apply to above. See Article IV-A, Item Number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount on above. CURRENT FUEL CHARGE WILL BE APPLIED TO THIS RATE SCHEDULE.

#### ELECTRIC RATE

NO. 2-A - GENERAL SERVICE - ALL ELECTRIC (Code 2D)

- APPLICABLE: To any nondomestic and/or commercial or industrial customer who would otherwise receive service under Rate No. 2 for all general power and energy use including lighting, water heating, space heating and air conditioning, where electric service is the only source of energy. This rate will not be available for any account which has a demand in excess of 300 KW.
- CHARACTER OF SERVICE: Alternating current, 60 hertz. Voltage and phase at the option of the Company.
- GROSS MONTHLY RATE: (See Article IV-A, Item Number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount)

Standard Rates Summer Season

First	50	kwhr	0	\$0.1334	per kwhr
Next	100	kwhr	6	\$0.1221	per kwhr
Next	200	kwhr	6	\$0.0988	per kwhr
Next	2,650	kwhr	6	\$0.0750	per kwhr
All in excess of	3,000	kwhr	6	\$0.0660	per kwhr
					-

Winter Season

First	50	kwhr	6	\$0.1334	per kwhr
Next	100	kwhr	9	\$0.1221	per kwhr
Next	200	kwhr	6	\$0.0988	per kwhr
Next	650	kwhr	9	\$0.0750	per kwhr
Next	2,000	kwhr	Ø	\$0.0705	per kwhr
All in excess of	3,000	kwhr	6	\$0.0571	per kwhr

#### Minimm

\$16.90 per meter per month.

The winter season begins with Cycle 7 bills dated November and ends with Cycle 6 bills dated May. The summer season applies for all other bills rendered during the year.

Note: "General Terms and Conditions" in effect apply to above. See Article IV-A, Item Number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount on above. CURRENT FUEL CHARGE WILL BE APPLIED TO THIS RATE SCHEDULE.

#### ELECTRIC RATE

No. 3 - MEDIUM GENERAL SERVICE (Code 2E)

APPLICABLE: To industrial or commercial customers for general power and energy purposes and having demands of 100 kw or over. This schedule is not applicable to breakdown, standby, supplementary, resale or shared electric service.

- CHARACTER OF SERVICE: Alternating current, 60 cycle, three phase service. Voltage at the option of the Company.
- GROSS MONTHLY RATE: (See Article IV-A, Item Number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount)

Demand ChargeFirst100 kw @ \$1,049.00 of billing demandAll in excess of 100 kw @ \$10.49 per kw of billing demand

The billing demand (to the nearest whole KW) shall be the greatest of (1) the maximum integrated fifteen-minute demand measured during the current month, (2) eighty percent (80%) of the highest demand occurring during the eleven preceding months, or (3) the contract demand, or (4) 100 KW.

Energy Charge All kwhr @ \$0.03080 per kwhr

Minimum

The minimum monthly charge shall be the demand charge as determined above.

POWER FACIOR CORRECTION: The customer shall at all times maintain a power factor of not less than 85 percent. The Department reserves the right to conduct tests to determine the power factor of the customer's installation during periods of maximum demand or by measurement of the average power factor for the monthly billing period. Should the power factor so determined fall below 85 percent, the demand for billing purposes will be determined by multiplying the maximum kw demand by 85 percent and dividing by the determined power factor. No credit shall be given for power factor greater than 85 percent.

Note: "General Terms and Conditions" in effect apply to above. See IV-A, Item Number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount on above. CURRENT FUEL CHARGE WILL BE APPLIED TO THIS RATE SCHEDULE.

# ELECTRIC RATE

NO. 7 - LARGE POWER AND INDUSTRIAL (Users having Connected Load of 41 kilowatts and over) (Code 2I)

Monthly Minimum Charge of \$3.00 per kw of Connected Load.

First50 kwhr @ \$0.14018 per kwhr per monthNext100 kwhr @ \$0.11794 per kwhr per monthNext200 kwhr @ \$0.10867 per kwhr per monthNext4,650 kwhr @ \$0.07176 per kwhr per monthAll in excess of 5,000 kwhr @ \$0.05866 per kwhr per month

NOTE: THIS RATE NOT AVAILABLE AFTER OCTOBER 6, 1970.

Note: "General Terms and Conditions" in effect apply to above. See Article IV-A, Item Number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount on above. CURRENT FUEL CHARGE WILL BE APPLIED TO THIS RATE SCHEDULE.

#### ELECTRIC RATE

NO. 8 - LARGE GENERAL SERVICE (Code 2H & Code 2S)

- APPLICABLE: To large industrial or commercial customers for general power and energy purposes and having demands of 1,000 kw or over. This schedule is not applicable to breakdown, standby, supplementary, resale or shared electric service.
- CHARACIER OF SERVICE: Alternating current, 60 cycle, three phase service. Service will be metered at primary voltage.
- GROSS MONTHLY RATE: (See Article IV-A, Item Number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount)

Demand Charge

First 1,000 kw @ \$10,486.00 of billing demand All in excess of 1,000 kw @ \$10.00 per kw of billing demand

The billing demand (to the nearest whole KW) shall be the greatest of: (1) the maximum integrated fifteen-minute demand measured during the current month, (2) eighty percent (80%) of the highest demand occurring during the eleven preceding months, (3) the contract demand, or (4) 1,000 KW.

Energy ChargeFirst400,000 kwhr @ \$0.03080 per kwhrAll in excess of 400,000 kwhr @ \$0.02970 per kwhr

#### Minimum

The minimum monthly charge shall be the demand charge as determined above.

- POWER FACTOR CORRECTION: The customer shall at all times maintain a power factor of not less than 85 percent. The Department reserves the right to conduct tests to determine the power factor of the customer's installation during periods of maximum demand or by measurement of the average power factor for the monthly billing period. Should the power factor so determined fall below 85 percent, the demand for billing purposes will be determined by multiplying the maximum kw demand by 85 percent and dividing by the determined power factor. No credit shall be given for power factors greater than 85 percent.
- Note: "General Terms and Conditions" in effect apply to above. See Article IV-A, Item Number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount on above. CURRENT FUEL CHARGE WILL BE APPLIED TO THIS RATE SCHEDULE.

# ELECTRIC RATE

NO. 9 - MERCURY VAPOR LIGHTS (Code 2K, 2L, & 2M)

The following is the rate schedule for Mercury Vapor Lights installed for customers for purposes of lighting other than street lighting.

175	Watts	\$ 5.97	per month
400	Watts	\$11.36	per month
1000	Watts	\$17.81	per month

Note: Add \$1.30 to above for each pole for which it is necessary to set.

.

Note: "General Terms and Conditions" in effect apply to above. See Article IV-A, Item Number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount on above.

#### ELECTRIC RATE

NO. 10 - STREET LIGHTS (Code 2J)

GROSS MONTHLY RATE: See Article IV-A, Item number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount.

The following is the rate schedule for Mercury Vapor Lights installed for street lighting:

A. Unmetered Street Lights

175	Watts	\$ 6.26	per	month
400	Watts	\$11.94	per	month
1000	Watts	\$30.28	per	month

B. Metered Street Lights

\$0.08545 per KWH

Calculations Used to Record KWH used by Mercury Vapor Lights without meters:

175	Watts	70 KWH	per	month
400	Watts	140 KWH	per	month
1000	Watts	400 KWH	per	month

Note: "General Terms and Conditions" in effect apply to above. See Article IV-A, Item Number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount on above. CURRENT FUEL CHARGE WILL BE APPLIED TO THIS RATE SCHEDULE.

Exhibit A

#### CONTRACT RATE

CONTRACT RATE: FOR SALE OF ELECTRIC POWER AND ENERGY TO GREENWOOD MILLS LINER PLANT

AVAILABILITY: This rate is available by contract for service to Greenwood Mills Liner Plant (Plant).

CHARACIER OF SERVICE: Alternating current, 60 cycle, three phase service metered at primary voltage.

GROSS MONTHLY RATE:

Demand Charge	\$11.56/Kw of billing demand
Energy Charge	2.687¢/Kwh of energy delivered
Facilities Charge	0.45¢/Kwh of energy delivered
Minimum Monthly Facilities Charge	\$4,500.00

- MONTHLY BILLING DEMAND: The monthly billing demand (calculated to the nearest whole Kw) shall be determined as the power requirement of the Plant coincident with the Department's monthly maximum demand. The Department's monthly maximum demand shall be as determined by South Carolina Electric and Gas Company (SCE&G) for the purpose of billing the Department for the purchase of power under FERC Rate Schedule WR or its successor. In the event the Department's Billing Demand from SCE&G is in excess of the Department's monthly maximum demand due to the effect of applying a billing ratchet, the billing demand herein applicable to Plant shall be similarly determined.
- ADJUSTMENT FOR CHANGES IN PURCHASE POWER COST: The above stated demand and energy charges are based on purchased power and energy charges to the Department by SCE&G of \$10.40/Kw (exclusive of high voltage discount) and 2.418¢/Kwh, respectively. To the extent that the actual cost to the Department of power (exclusive of high voltage discount) and energy purchased from SCE&G differs due to change in SCE&G's Rate WR, or due to application of SCE&G's Wholesale Fuel Cost Adjustment provision or for any other reason, the above Gross Monthly Rate shall be adjusted proportionately.
- POWER FACTOR CORRECTION: The Plant and Plant generating station shall at all times maintain a power factor of not less than 85 percent lagging. The Department reserves the right to conduct tests to determine the power factor of the Plant's installation during periods of maximum demand or by measurement of the average power factor for the monthly billing period. Should the power factor so determined fall below 85 percent lagging, the monthly maximum demand shall be adjusted by multiplying the maximum Kw

demand by 85 percent and dividing by the determined power factor. No credit shall be given for power factors greater than 85 percent. the

TERMS AND CONDITIONS: The Department's "General Terms and Conditions" in effect apply to the above. See Article IV-A, Item Number 4, "General Terms and Conditions" for discount on above. The Department's current fuel charge wil not be applied to this contract rate schedule.

-

: ]

## CITY COUNCIL MINUTES MAY 5, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on May 5, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

PRESENT: E.O. Pendarvis, Mayor Everette W. Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Sara H. Alexander Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

#### ABSENT: Henry F. Frierson

ABB132

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved the April 21,1987 City Council Minutes as distributed.

A motion by Councilmember Alexander, seconded by Mayor Pendarvis, unanimously approved the low bid of \$3,600.00 for golf cart batteries from EZ Go.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved a Resolution In Support Of The New Production Reactor at the Savannah River Plant.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the recommendation of the Orangeburg Aviation Commission for Contech Group, Inc., Architect, and Cleckley and McGee, Inc., Contractor, to provide design development plans and guaranteed maximum costs for renovation of the Airport Administrative Building. Mr. Bill Wannamaker of the Orangeburg Aviation Commission stated that the city would be obligated to \$4,000 which he stated would be the guaranteed maximum cost to the City of Orangeburg.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved recommendation of the Orangeburg Aviation Commission that Young-Robinson Associates, Incorporated develop the Multi-year Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) Plan as required by FAA for federal funding. Mr. Wannamaker stated that the cost would not exceed \$5,500 plus a \$500 administrative fee.

In consideration of proposed Pine Street Mobile Home Park, Mr. Barney Houser, one of the co-owners of the park, spoke for the mobile home park. Mr. Jerry Craven of Moseley Street spoke against the mobile home park in his area. A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Mayor Pendarvis, to approve the mobile home park. Councilmember Alexander and Councilmember Bradley opposed the mobile home park, therefore, approval was denied. Council unanimously decided to postpone the two proposed streets until further clarification of the Planning Commission's decision.

A motion made by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved the first reading of an Ordinance to set a \$10.00 permit fee for mobile homes.

A motion by Councilmember Alexander, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved the Proclamation observing May 6, 1987 as NATIONAL NURSES' DAY.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the third reading of an Ordinance to protect the health, welfare and safety of citizens of Orangeburg during periods of drought and/or other water supply crisis. Council unanimously approved a Resolution to adjust utility (electric, gas) rates.

Council agreed that a Planning Commission member should not represent any matter that has been brought before the Planning Commission. They directed the building inspector to bring this matter before the Planning Commission. CITY COUNCIL MINUTES MAY 5, 1987 PAGE 2

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved entering into an executive session for legal briefing.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted,

Carol A. Brunson 0

City Clerk

#### RESOLUTION

## IN SUPPORT OF NEW PRODUCTION REACTOR AT SAVANNAH RIVER PLANT

Whereas, the Savannah River Plant, constructed in the early 1950's has proven to be a good neighbor compliling an outstanding safety record in the field of nuclear operations;

WHEREAS, the production reactors now sited at Savannah River Plant are over thirty (30) years old and nearing technical obsolescence; and

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Energy (DOE) is currently evaluating sites for the construction of the first of a new generation production reactor; and

WHEREAS, a Blue Ribbon Committee appointed by DOE has determined Savannah River Plant the site most suited for construction of said production reactor; and

WHEREAS, In August of 1983 Energy Secretary Donald P. Hodel has made a preliminary decision to construct said reactor in the state of Idaho; and

WHEREAS, the City of Orangeburg is vitally concerned for the economic well being of this area.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF ORANGEBURG THAT:

- 1. The City of Orangeburg supports efforts by local, state and federal officials to locate the new production reactor at the Savannah River Plant.
- 2. The City of Orangeburg request the assistance of the state legislative delegation, congressional delegation and Governor Campbell in actively seeking the eventual construction of this reactor at Savannah River Plant.

ADOPTED THIS THE 5TH OF MAY, 1987.

MAYO

lecha. OF COUNCIL MEMBERS

ATTEST:

Çitv Clerk

# Special City Council Minutes May 14, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held a special meeting on May 14, 1987 at 6:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

PRESENT: E.O. Pendarvis, Mayor Sara H. Alexander Henry F. Frierson Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

ABB132

ABSENT: Everette W. Salley, Mayor Pro Tem

A motion was made and seconded, unanimously approving to enter into an executive session for legal briefing.

L. Hugh Smith City Administrator

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on May 19, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

PRESENT: E.O. Pendarvis, Mayor Everette W. Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Henry F.Frierson Sara H. Alexander Herbert W. Bradley

A motion by Councilmember Bradley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the May 5, 1987 City Council Minutes as amended.

On the matter of the Pine Street Mobile Home Park, Attorney Walsh stated that the mobile home park and streets within the park were approved by the Planning Commission as separate items, therefore, council could take action on the street matter if they wish. A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved re-scheduling this matter until next council meeting. A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, not to accept any streets into the city until they meet highway specifications. They do not want to accept any dirt streets into the city but only accept paved streets. Mayor Pendarvis opposed this motion and after discussion Mayor Pro Tem Salley withdrew his motion.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the second reading of an ordinance to set a \$10.00 permit fee for mobile homes. Mayor Pro Tem Salley abstained because of conflict of interest.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved for Cleckley and McGee to remove the roof on the burned Orangeburg Municipal Airport Administrative Building.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the first reading of an ordinance To Amend the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance.

Council unanimously agreed to postpone any action on the Law Enforcement Complex budget until they had time to study the proposal.

Under cable TV matters the city made an offer to Jones Intercable based on the discussion by Mr. Macon Sheppard at the 4-7-87 City Council Meeting. Jones Intercable will not accept this offer now after the city's decision to conduct a feasibility study on a city owned cable TV service. Mr. Macon Sheppard stated that the matter changed after the city passed a Resolution on 4-7-87. Council agreed to Mayor Pendarvis' motion to leave the current pole agreement policy as is.

City Administrator Smith then requested an executive session for legal briefing.

Department of Public Utilities Manager, Ted Johnson, brought no utility matters before council.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved entering into an executive session for legal briefing.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Carol A. Brunson

324

#### CITY COUNCIL MINUTES JUNE 2, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on June 2, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

PRESENT: E. O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Sara H. Alexander Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

#### ABSENT: Henry F. Frierson

ABB132

A Public Hearing was held for the purpose of considering Pine Street Mobile Home Park. Mr. Barney Houser spoke in favor of the mobile home park stating that he could enforce high standards in a mobile home park in lieu of selling off the lots. No one spoke against this proposal.

A Public Hearing was held on the proposed rezoning of property on the corner of Chestnut and Hillcrest. Ms. Jeanne Kees of 2855 Riley spoke as a representative of National Property Analysis, the owners of the property. She pointed out that the highest and best use of this property would be commercial which would increase revenues brought to the City. Mr. Wilbur Hunt and Mr. Jack Wolfe, property owners in that area spoke against the rezoning stating that it would be harmful to the neighborhood.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the 5-14-87 Special City Council Minutes and the 5-19-87 City Council Minutes as received.

A motion by Councilmember Alexander, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the appointment of Marion J. Smith, Jr., as Parks and Recreation Director, after completing his six months probationary period.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Mayor Pendarvis, unanimously approved accepting streets into the City if they meet highway specifications.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved the location of the Pine Street Mobile Home Park.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved accepting the streets in Pine Street Mobile Home Park if they meet highway specifications.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the third reading of an Ordinance to establish and set a mobile home permit rate with Mayor Pro Tem Salley abstaining due to personal conflict.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the second reading of an ordinance To Amend the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance.

Council unanimously approved postponing the Law Enforcement Complex budget until further information can be received.

City Administrator Smith presented Council with a plaque from the Southeastern Tourism Society noting that the SC Festival of Roses was one of the top twenty (20) events in the southeast during the Spring quarter.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved to accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission which was to disallow the rezoning of the property on the corner of Chestnut and Hillcrest. CITY COUNCIL MINUTES JUNE 2, 1987 PAGE 2

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved to accept the low bid of \$14,400 from E-Z Go to purchase ten (10) rebuilt golf carts.

Department of Public Utilities Manager, Ted Johnson, was not present, therefore, no matters were discussed pertaining to the Department of Public Utilities.

There being no further business, a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Mayor Pendarvis, unanimously approved to adjourn the meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

6 Sum A. Brunson Carol

¢ity Clerk

326

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on June 16, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

PRESENT: E.O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Sara H. Alexander

ABSENT: Henry F. Frierson Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

N

ABB13

A Public Hearing was held for the consideration of the proposed Mills Street Mobile Home Park. Major Samuel Glover, owner of the property read the regulations that he has established for the proposed park. There was no opposition.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the June 2, 1987 City Council Minutes as received.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the third reading of an Ordinance To Amend the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the City's portion of the Law Enforcement Complex budget to be included in the City's budget with the stipulation that the roof repair portion not be expended without City Council's approval.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the Grievance Committee's report. (See Attachment)

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the reinstatement to the Board of Appeals for Jake Shuler and Edgar McGee for four year terms expiring 7-1-91.

A motion by Councilmember Alexander, seconded by Mayor Pendarvis, unanimously approved the proposed Mills Street Mobile Home Park.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Mayor Pendarvis, unanimously approved the acceptance of three (3) streets in the Mills Street Mobile Home Park when they meet highway specifications.

A motion by Councilmember Alexander, seconded by Mayor Pendarvis, unanimously approved the Proclamation declaring July as "National Recreation and Parks Month."

Council received a request from Parents Without Partners asking to use the former Boys' Club Building. City Administrator Smith informed Council that the building is used by departments within the City and also rented to various organizations. Council agreed to rent the building, as is, to Parents Without Partners when it is available.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the Ethyl Corporation's request to install a warning siren on the City's landfill property. The City will bear no responsibility for the maintenance and up keep of the warning siren.

Department of Public Utilities Manager, Ted Johnson, was not present, therefore, no utility matters were brought before Council.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted, 1 D

Carol A. Brunson City Clerk

# SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MINUTES JUNE 30, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held a special meeting on June 30, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

> PRESENT: E.O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Henry F. Frierson Sara H. Alexander Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

A motion made by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved entering into an executive session for legal briefing.

Respectfully submitted, Z A. Brunson Ca: c**o**Ω eity Clerk

328

# GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

# Grievance Hearing

Appellant's Name:	Terry M. Stephens
Job Classification	: Detective Corporal
Department:	Police/Detective Date: June 3, 1987
Nature of Case:	Detective Stephens' 3-day suspension without pay

Findings: (Use additional pages if necessary) The Grievance Committee supports Chief Brant's and Captain Carter's suspension of Detective Corporal Stephens for three (3) days without pay. Refusing to perform assigned tasks could result in dismissal, but evidently because Corporal Stephens has a clean record, suspension was decided upon.

Corporal Stephens did make a duplicate key to the evidence room, but refused to keep one for himself as Captain Carter instructed.

Recommendation:

c(1) The Police Department should have an established written procedure to be followed by the person or persons in charge of the evidence room. To have a good system of checks and balances, more than one person should have access to the evidence room, which is what they were trying to establish at this point in time. (2) Corporal Stephens should have respectfully asked to be removed from having any responsibility for the evidence room if he felt uncomfortable with the new assignment.

Signatu of Committee Members: Chairman Date: Decision by City Council: (Use additional pages if necessary) te City Council agrees with the decision of the Grievance Committee.

Date

Tendani

# CITY COUNCIL MINUTES JULY 7, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on July 7, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

PRESENT: E.O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Henry F. Frierson Sara H. Alexander Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

: ni

ABB132

A Public Hearing was held to classify "D-1 Industrial"--Orangeburg Municipal Airport and rezoning from "A-2" to "O-I"--Seymour property on corner of Amelia and Fair Streets. There was no discussion on these matters.

A motion made by Councilmember Alexander, seconded by Mayor Pendarvis, unanimously approved the June 16, 1987 City Council Minutes and the June 30, 1987 Special City Council Minutes as received.

A motion made by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the dismantling and mounting of fixtures at Adden Street Ball Park and mounting fixtures and setting poles at the two (2) soccer fields at Hillcrest. There will be an over expenditure of \$5,500 which is needed to complete the additional field at Hillcrest.

A motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Mayor Pendarvis, unanimously approved the submission of the Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) draft to the FAA and Civil Rights Office with the following designated change: The MBE liaison officer will be the City Administrator and not the Public Works Director.

Mr. James McGee of Contech Group, Inc., and Cleckley and McGee discussed the plan and the guaranteed maximum cost of \$125,000 to rebuild the Airport Administration Building. A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved to proceed with the project.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved the Amendment #6 for engineering services for the proposed airport grant.

City Administrator Smith presented Council with a written update of the Dukes Area Drainage Project.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the first reading of an ordinance to annex the Prince of Orange Mall.

Attorney Walsh presented two ordinances to Council. The first postponing the upcoming 9-8-87 election for two councilmembers until the tentative date of the second Tuesday in February, 1988 for the purpose of electing six (6) councilmembers pursuant to a new election procedure. The second ordinance presented was an ordinance to amend Chapter II, Article I of the City's Code of Ordinances for the purpose of changing the election procedures for council members by amending sections 2-3 and 2-4 and adding section 2-5. This ordinance would establish six (6) election districts with the Mayor elected at large. A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the first reading of the above two ordinances.

A motion made by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the first reading of an ordinance to classify "D-1 Industrial"--Orangeburg Municipal Airport and rezoning from "A-2" to "O-I"--Seymour property on corner of Amelia and Fair Streets. **330** JULY 7, 1987

Attorney Walsh presented an ordinance establishing an Industrial Development Commission. A motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the establishing of the seven (7) member commission.

Department of Public Utilities Manager, Ted Johnson, brought no utility matters before Council.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted, Þur A. Brunson Carol City Clerk

#### CITY COUNCIL MINUTES JULY 21, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on July 21, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

PRESENT: E. O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Henry F. Frierson Sara H. Alexander

ABSENT: Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

N 0

5

A Public Hearing was held for consideration of a proposed mobile home park of ten (10) trailer sites on the campus of Southern Methodist College. Mr. Charles Bennett spoke in favor of the additional trailer sites needed for married students. No one spoke against this matter.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the July 7, 1987 City Council Minutes as received.

Mr. Robert Scarborough, Chairman of the County Development Commission made an appearance before council to discuss the city's creation of an Industrial Development Commission. Mr. Scarborough explained that this would be a duplication of effort and that we (city and county) don't want to start a game of one-up-manship. He discussed that the city and county needed to work together with a consolidation of effort.

Mr. Denny Hartzog, Orangeburg native and chairman of the board of Quality Broach (a new industry to the Orangeburg area) and Mr. Mike Eades of the State Development Board and also Associate Director of the National Development Board, both stressed the importance of having only one contact agency in the county.

Mayor Pendarvis stated that Mr. Scarborough was being an antagonist since he (Scarborough) was making an issue out of the matter by bringing this matter (City Council's desire to start an Industrial Development Commission) out in the open. Mayor Pendarvis was also upset over a letter received from Mr. J. Mac Holladay, Executive Director of the State Development Board. Council also pointed out to Mr. Scarborough that the City of Orangeburg is not represented on the County Development Board. Mr. Scarborough stated that he would bring this issue up with County Council.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the second reading of an ordinance to classify "D-1-Industrial"--Orangeburg Municipal Airport.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the second reading of an ordinance to rezone from "A-2" to "O-I"--Seymour property on corner of Amelia and Fair Streets.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the second reading of an ordinance for annexation of the Prince of Orange Mall.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the second reading of an ordinance to postpone the General Election for electing two (2) council members scheduled for 9-8-87 until the second Tuesday in February, 1988.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the second reading of an ordinance establishing an Industrial Development Commission.

A Resolution and watch was presented to Mr. Theodore Thomas, retired police officer, for twenty three (23) years of service to the city.

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES PAGE 2 JULY 21, 1987

332

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the addition of ten (10) mobile home sites on the campus of Southern Methodist College.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved to proceed with the advertising and receiving of bids on two (2) additional hangars at the Orangeburg Municipal Airport.

City Administrator Smith requested an executive session for personnel matters and a legal briefing.

Department of Public Utilities Manager, Ted Johnson, brought no utility matters before council.

There being no further business, a motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Mayor Pendarvis, to adjourn and enter into an executive session.

Respectfully submitted,

Carol A. Brunson 18AV.r

City Clerk

# RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Utilities of the City of Orangeburg, South Carolina, received bids on July 30, 1987 for the construction of New Brookland Sewer, Phase II.

WHEREAS, the low responsible bid for Division I of this work was submitted by Newman Construction Company of Sumter, South Carolina in the amount of \$345,656.50, and the low responsible bid for Division II by Rockdale Pipeline of Conyers, Georgia in the amount of \$110,102.25 and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Mayor and Members of Council of the City of Orangeburg, in Council of the City of Orangeburg, in Council assembled, and by authority of the same, that the low responsible bids shown above be accepted, subject to approval of the Governor's Office of Economic Development, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Ted M. Johnson, Jr., Manager of the Department of Public Utilities, be authorized and he is hereby directed to execute the contract documents on behalf of the Department of Public Utilities of the City of Orangeburg.

PASSED by the City Council, in Council assembled, at Orangeburg, South Carolina this  $\underline{4}$  of  $\underline{August}$  A.D., 1987.

Signed:

ATTEST City Clerk and Treasurer

## SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING AUGUST 12, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held a special meeting on August 12, 1987 at 12:15 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

PRESENT: E. O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Henry F. Frierson Sara H. Alexander Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

ABB132

A motion was made by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved entering into an executive session for discussion of personnel matters.

Respectfully submitted,

λ L. Hugh Smith

City Administrator

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on August 18, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

PRESENT: E. O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Henry F. Frierson Sara H. Alexander Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

A motion by Councilmember Alexander, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the August 4, 1987 City Council Minutes and the August 12, 1987 Special City Council Minutes.

An appearance was made by Mr. Roy Chandler of the Uptown Merchant's Association. He was requesting that all parking meters be removed from the uptown business area temporarily so that the Association could advertise free parking. A motion was made by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, to cover the parking meters in specified downtown areas on a temporary basis.

Mr. Robert Gordon, Director of the Detention Center presented a plaque to Mr. Thomas A. Boland in dedication to his service to the Detention Center.

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the Resolution for the Law Enforcement Commission to enter into a contract for the roof repair with either the City Attorney or City Administrator having the authority to enter into an agreement.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the first reading of an ordinance to raise revenue and adopt a budget for fiscal year ending September 30, 1988.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the first reading of an ordinance to amend the Business License Ordinance.

City Administrator Smith requested an executive session for discussion of personnel matters.

Mr. Ted Johnson, Department of Public Utilities Manager, brought no utility matters before council.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved to adjourn and enter into an executive session.

Respectfully submitted,

garol Brunson City Clerk

#### CITY COUNCIL MINUTES AUGUST 4, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on August 4, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

PRESENT: E. O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Sara H. Alexander Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

#### ABSENT: Henry F. Frierson

A motion by Councilmember Alexander, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved the July 21, 1987 City Council Minutes as received.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the third reading of an ordinance to classify "D-1 Industrial"--Orangeburg Municipal Airport.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the third reading of an ordinance to rezone from "A-2" to "O-I"--Seymour property on corner of Amelia and Fair Streets.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the third reading of an ordinance to annex the Prince of Orange Mall on January 1, 1988.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the third reading of an ordinance to postpone the General Election for electing two (2) council members scheduled for 9-8-87.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Mayor Pendarvis, unanimously approved the third reading of an ordinance establishing an Industrial Development Commission.

Council agreed for the Law Enforcement Commission to enter into a contract for the roof repair.

Nominations for the Industrial Development Commission members were received. They are as follows:

Alan Mc C. Johnstone Austin Cunningham A. L. Brewington Dr. Albert Smith Lamar Dawkins Warren C. Hewitt Daniel Peck

200

ABB1

A motion by Councilmember Alexander, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved to close the nominations.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously agreed to accept the members (4 year terms--expiring 8-91) by acclamation.

Mr. Ted Johnson, Department of Public Utilities Manager, submitted a Resolution to council to begin construction of the second phase of the NEW BROOKLAND SEWER PROJECT. A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved the low responsible bid (\$345,656.50) for Division I by Newman Construction Company and the low responsible bid (\$110,102.25) for Division II by Rockdale Pipe Line. Mr. Johnson informed council that the grant amount would be \$500,000 and that the low responsible bids were subject to approval by the Governor's Office of Economic Development. CTEV COINICTI

334

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES PAGE 2 AUGUST 4, 1987

There being no further business, a motion made by Mayor Pro Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved to adjourn and enter into an executive session for contractual/legal matters.

Respectfully submitted, 1 Carol Ann Brunson City Clerk

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES AUGUST 24, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held a special meeting on August 24, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 6:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

> PRESENT: E. O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Henry F. Frierson Sara H. Alexander Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

**ABB132** 

The meeting was called to order. The purpose of the meeting was for a 1987-88 Budget Workshop.

Respectfully submitted,

Carol A. Brunson City Clerk

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES AUGUST 31, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held a special meeting on August 31, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 6:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

> PRESENT: E. O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Henry F. Frierson Sara H. Alexander

ABSENT: Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

The meeting was called to order. The purpose of the meeting was for a 1987-88 Budget Workshop.

Respectfully submitted,

A. Brunson Carol'

City Clerk

## CITY COUNCIL MINUTES SEPTEMBER 1, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on September 1, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

PRESENT: E. O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Henry F. Frierson Sara H. Alexander

ABSENT: Herbert W. Bradley, JR.

 $\mathbb{O}$ 

 $\hat{m}$ 

Ω

ဤ

5

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the August 18, 1987 City Council Minutes, the August 24, 1987 Special City Council Minutes and the August 31, 1987 Special City Council Minutes.

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the second reading of an ordinance to raise revenue and adopt a budget for fiscal year ending September 30, 1988.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the second reading of an ordinance to amend the Business License Ordinance.

Mr. Frank Dempsey, Fireman; Mrs. Clyde Gardner, Dantzler Avenue; Mr. J. J. Teskey, Middleton Street; Greg Gambrell, Fireman; and Mr. David Jeffcoat, 640 Bennett; voiced their opinions mainly against the establishment of a Public Safety Department. Rev. John Hill, Orangeburg Baptist Tabernacle, wanted to know if this would put more officers out on patrol for events such as recent teenage beer parties.

Mayor said that council had given Public Safety Concept long consideration and thinks that it will enhance and give more use of manpower, be more effective and more economical.

Councilmember Frierson wanted the citizens to understand that all Public Safety Officers would be qualified to do the job needed. If effective this would provide better service and be more economical because personnel would be used to their best advantage. This would provide for more patrolling and more people trained to provide fire and police protection. He also stated that this may take two or three years before the whole concept is implemented. Councilmember Frierson pointed out that this was not a hasty decision and at no time could this be implemented and not affect someone.

Mr. Basil Williams, Cordova, wanted to know how this would affect insurance rates.

After much discussion from citizens and employees, a motion made by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the implementation of a Public Safety Department.

An appearance was made by Mr. Bill Wannamaker stating that all engineering estimates at the airport were in and that approximately \$200,000 was needed for construction on the runway. He wanted council to talk with senators, representatives, or whoever could help assist the city in acquiring funds to complete this runway construction. CITY COUNCIL MINUTES SEPTEMBER 1, 1987 PAGE 2

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the following:

- (1) Awarding the low bids of \$35,300 to J. L. Myers Paving for the clearing of approach obstructions for runway 4 and \$49,837.90 to Walker and Whiteside, Inc., for refurbishing the runway lighting system and rotating beacon.
- (2) Awarding the low bid of \$126,519.20 to J. L. Myers for clearing and site preparation for proposed runway 17/35.
- (3) Approved the execution of the grant application and offer on the above items. The approved items are subject to funding, two of which have already been funded. The bids will remain open for sixty (60) days if funded, ninety (90) days if not funded.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved to terminate the lease on the Old AA Building. This requires a sixty (60) day notice under the current lease.

City Administrator Smith requested an executive session for personnel matters.

Department of Public Utilities Manager, Ted Johnson, brought no utility matters before council.

A motion by Councilmember Alexander, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved to adjourn and enter into an executive session.

Respectfully submitted, Carol A. Brunson City Clerk

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MINUTES SEPTEMBER 8, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held a special meeting on September 8, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 6:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

> PRESENT: E. O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Henry F. Frierson Sara H. Alexander Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

C

 $\mathcal{O}$ 

ABB1.

The meeting was called to order. The purpose of the meeting was for a 1987-88 budget workshop.

Respectfully submitted, Çăřōl A. Brunson City Clerk

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES SEPTEMBER 15, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on September 15, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

> PRESENT: E. O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Henry F. Frierson Sara H. Alexander Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

A resolution and watch was presented to Mr. Henry Harmon for his thirty-four (34) years of service to the Department of Public Utilities.

A Public Haring was held on the 1987-88 Budget which includes approximately \$10,000 revenue sharing money anticipated to be received by the city and will be used for Public Safety Department salaries. The budget includes \$5,880,832 in expenditures with current income projected at \$4,281,437. The deficit of \$1,400,205 current income projected at \$4,381,437. The deficit of \$1,499,395 is to come from an estimated reserve of \$1,502,172.

A motion by Councilmember Alexander, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved the September 1, 1987 City Council Minutes and the September 8, 1987 Special City Council Minutes.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the third reading of an ordinance to amend the Business License Ordinance.

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the first reading of the Public Safety Ordinance which will combine the Fire and Police Departments. Mrs. Clyde Gardner, Dantzler Street; Mrs. B. E. Mixson, 1580 Sifly Road; Mr. J. J. Teskey, 1209 Middleton; and Mr. Ward Parler of Culler Street expressed their concern over the establishment of the Public Safety Department. Mrs. Irene Fairey expressed her concern but also hoped that this new endeavor would be successful.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the expenditure of a maximum amount of \$17,500 for the Dukes Street Flood Study. The City Administrator has authorization to sign this agreement.

Council approved the surplus items submitted for sale on September 26, 1987.

Department of Public Utilities Manager, Ted Johnson, brought no utility matters before council.

The Rev. Jesse Jerkins of Grace Baptist Church, Columbia Road; and Rev. John Westbury of Rivelon Road spoke concerning teenage beer parties and teenage drinking problems in the Orangeburg area.

Mr. Will McCain, 961 Middleton Street, wanted to thank council for all the work done on the Dukes Street Project and all the work they have done for the community.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted, Carol A. Brunson

City Clerk

### RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, Henry Harmon became an employee of the Department of Public Utilities of the City of Orangeburg on September 4, 1953, and faithfully served this Department and the City until September 9, 1987; and

WHEREAS, He, through his long and faithful service contributed greatly to the successful operation of the Department of Public Utilities; and

WHEREAS, The City Council, in recognition of the fine contribution rendered the City of Orangeburg, wants to inscribe on the records its appreciation; NOW THEREFORE,

BE IT RESOLVED That the Mayor and Members of Council, in Council assembled, do officially take cognizance of the faithful service rendered to the Department of Public Utilities of the City of Orangeburg by Henry Hanmon in the capacities in which he served the Department for the past thirty-four years, and commend him for a job well done.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED That a copy of this resolution, in appreciation of his devotion of duty to the City of Orangeburg, be placed in the minute book of the City and a copy furnished to Mr. Harmon in recognition of his services.

PASSED By the City Council of the City of Orangeburg, State of South Carolina, this fifteenth day of September, A.D., 1987.

Mayor v IL alu 0

Members of Council

ATTEST City Clerk

## CITY COUNCIL MINUTES OCTOBER 6, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on October 6, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

> PRESENT: E. O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Sara H. Alexander Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

#### ABSENT: Henry F. Frierson

ABB132

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the September 15, 1987 City Council Minutes as received.

A resolution and watch was presented to Matthew Myers, Jr., for twenty-eight (28) years of service to the City of Orangeburg.

Ms. Tania Houck, wife of a city fireman, made an appearance before council to protest the merger of the Police and Fire Departments.

A motion was made by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, to accept the City Industrial Development Commission budget with Councilmembers Alexander and Bradley voting against it. Councilmember Bradley wanted a detail breakdown of the budget and consideration of a location other than the Department of Public Utilities building. He suggested that maybe we should add office space at the new airport since this is a major investment and it needs to be a good and wise investment. Mayor Pendarvis stated that the new airport was a long way off from being of any use for this purpose and that the present facility is probably not satisfactory. He did not want to hold up the decision and wanted it handled now. Councilmember Bradley wanted to only postpone until the next council meeting. Mayor Pro Tem Salley said that council should not dictate to the commission. DPU, Manager, Ted Johnson, said that this was not the proper time to consider the location because there are more important things to be done now. He suggested to council that they let the commission know how they are to serve.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Mayor Pendarvis, unanimously approved the third reading of an ordinance to raise revenue and adopt a budget for fiscal year ending September 30, 1988.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the second reading of the Public Safety Ordinance.

Council received a request from The Orangeburg Jaycees concerning leasing the Old AA Building as a Jaycee Hut. Council agreed to postpone any consideration on the lease of the Old AA Building at this time.

City Administrator Smith reported on the surplus items auctioned on Saturday, September 26, 1987. The total net sale was \$10,068 with the city receiving \$7,511 and DPU \$2,557.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, approved the request by the State Highway Department to construct a drainage ditch on the municipal airport property.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, approved the addition of Memorial Day as a holiday.

Council agreed to appoint the Mayor to meet with a member of County Council concerning the dog pound in order to work out a tentative agreement to be reported to both councils. CITY COUNCIL MINUTES OCTOBER 6, 1987 PAGE 2

Mayor Pendarvis noted the observance of Textile Week, October 16th through 24th, 1987.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously agreed to accept the proposal from Orangeburg County Council to swap 209 plus or minus acres of land located at the airport owned by the county for a fee simple deed to the parking lot behind Smiley's Auto Shine on Sunnyside Street, one-half of the cost of lighting the parking lot, and also \$50,000 in cash.

Department of Public Utilities Manager, Ted Johnson, brought no utility matters before council.

A retirement dinner was held for Marion F. Inabinet, Jr., on September 28, 1987 at which time he was presented with a resolution and watch for his thirty-eight (38) years, nine and one-half (9 1/2) months of service to the City of Orangeburg.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted, th Carol A. Brunson City Clerk

344

# RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, Matthew Myers, Jr., became an employee of the City of Orangeburg on August 10, 1959, and faithfully served the City until September 15, 1987; and

WHEREAS, He, through his long and faithful service contributed greatly to the successful operation of the City of Orangeburg Service Department; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, in recognition of the fine contribution rendered the City of Orangeburg, wants to inscribe on the records its appreciation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and Members of Council, in Council assembled, do officially take cognizance of the faithful service rendered to the City of Orangeburg by Matthew Myers, Jr., in the capacities in which he served for the past twenty-eight (28) years, and commend him for a job well done.

**BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED** that a copy of this resolution, in appreciation of his devotion of duty to the City of Orangeburg, be placed in the minute book of the City and a copy furnished to **Mr. Myers** in recognition of his services.

**PASSED** by the City Council of the City of Orangeburg, State of South Carolina, this sixth day of October, 1987.

CLERK

# RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, Marion F. Inabinet, Jr., became an employee of the City of Orangeburg on December 15, 1948, and faithfully served the City until September 30, 1987; and

WHEREAS, He, through his long and faithful service contributed greatly to the successful operation of the City of Orangeburg Fire Department; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, in recognition of the fine contribution rendered the City of Orangeburg, wants to inscribe on the records its appreciation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and Members of Council, in Council assembled, do officially take cognizance of the faithful service rendered to the City of Orangeburg by Marion F. Inabinet, Jr., in the capacities in which he served for the past thirty-eight (38) years, nine and one-half (9½) months, and commend him for a job well done.

**BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED** that a copy of this resolution, in appreciation of his devotion of duty to the City of Orangeburg, be placed in the minute book of the City and a copy furnished to **Mr. Inabinet** in recognition of his services.

**PASSED** by the City Council of the City of Orangeburg, State of South Carolina, this sixth day of October, 1987.

MEMBERS OF COUNCIL

### SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MINUTES OCTOBER 9, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held a special meeting on October 9, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 6:30 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

> PRESENT: E. O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Henry F. Frierson Sara H. Alexander Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

ABB132

A motion was made and seconded, unanimously approved the acceptance of the Industrial Development Commission Budget for 1987-88.

Respectfully submitted,

U L. Hugh Smith

City Administrator

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES OCTOBER 20, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting October 20, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

PRESENT: E. O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Henry F. Frierson Sara H. Alexander

ABSENT: Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

ABB132

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Frierson unanimously approved the October 6, 1987 City Council Minutes and the October 9, 1987 Special City Council Minutes

An appearance was made by Mr. Macon Sheppard who made general comments about city finances. He stated that he felt that all city funds (city and DPU) should be included when determining the annual budget.

A resolution was presented to Ms. Mattie Pooser for her twenty-seven (27) years of service to the City of Orangeburg.

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the third reading of the Public Safety Ordinance. A motion wad made by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved to appoint Eugene A. Brant as Public Safety Director.

Mr. Willie B. Owens read a letter from the Orangeburg Branch of the NAACP about the concern over the police and fire merger. Mrs. Clyde Gardner and Mr. J. J. Teskey also voiced their opinion against the merger.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved to pay Orangeburg County \$15,000 to be used for the animal shelter with the stipulation that this is a one time fee.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously agreed to apply all unused FY 86-87 LEC budget funds to the additional repairs at the Law Enforcement Complex as per their request.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously agreed to send a letter of need endorsement to Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional Hospital.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously agreed to the submittal of a state project application for 50% funding for the airport administration building and authorization to accept the grant offer and authorized Mayor Pendarvis to sign the grant acceptance offer.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the first reading of the ordinance to amend the 1987-88 Budget. This would change the total allotment from \$5,926,532 to \$5,996,532 in both expenditures and revenue.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously agreed to sell the land at 130 Hampton Street, S.E., by its recently appraised value of \$21,600.00.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously agreed to continue with the same Halloween night policy as we have had in the past. Children twelve (12) years of age and under will be allowed to masquerade and visit from house to house until 9:00 P.M. CITY COUNCIL MINUTES OCTOBER 20, 1987 PAGE 2

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the first reading of an ordinance to exchange property at Highway S-38-1604 with Mr. L. M. Rhodes. Department of Public Utilities Manager, Ted Johnson, reported that after completing a feasibility study on the city owned cable TV project, it was concluded that there was no need to begin this project at this time.

Mr. Bernard Haire wanted to know where the cable situation would leave the citizens of Orangeburg. Mr. Johnson said that DPU still needs space on the poles for the fiber optics system, but other than that everything else would remain the same.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted, A. Brunson Carol City Clerk

348

## RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, Mattie M. Pooser, became an employee of the City of Orangeburg on September 26, 1960, and faithfully served the City until September 30, 1987; and

WHEREAS, She, through her long and faithful service contributed greatly to the successful operation of the City of Orangeburg Police Department; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, in recognition of the fine contribution rendered the City of Orangeburg, wants to inscribe on the records its appreciation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and Members of Council, in Council assembled, do officially take cognizance of the faithful service rendered to the City of Orangeburg by Mattie M. Pooser, in the capacities in which she served for the past twenty-seven (27) years, and commend her for a job well done.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution, in appreciation of her devotion of duty to the City of Orangeburg, be placed in the minute book of the City and a copy furnished to Ms. Pooser in recognition of her services.

**PASSED** by the City Council of the City of Orangeburg, State of South Carolina, this twentieth day of October, 1987.

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES NOVEMBER 3, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on November 3, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

PRESENT: E. O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Henry F. Frierson Sara H. Alexander Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

A Public Hearing was held on the following:

N

BB13

- A. Consideration of rezoning request from "A-2 Residential" to "Office-Institutional-Apartments" (Amelia Street)
- B. Consideration of classification request to classify "B-1 Business" (Prince of Orange property located on Highway 178)

No one spoke for or against the above two matters.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the October 20, 1987 City Council Minutes as received.

Mr. Ashley Aiken, Co-chairman of the Community Housing Task Force, introduced himself and other members in order to make council aware of their interest in the community.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the second reading of an ordinance to amend the 1987-88 Budget.

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the first reading of an ordinance for the sale of land at 130 Hampton Street, SE.

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved the first reading of an ordinance on the following:

- A. Consideration of rezoning request from "A-2 Residential" to "Office-Institutional-Apartments" (Amelia Street)
- B. Consideration of classification request to classify "B-1 Business" (Prince of Orange property located on Highway 178)

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the first reading of an ordinance to amend the 1987-88 Budget for milage rate purposes.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously agreed to trade the skeleton bleachers with Palmetto Beachers of Sardinia, SC for two (2) five-row portable steel frame aluminum seats and footboards.

Regarding Department of Public Utilities matters, a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the second reading of an ordinance to exchange property at Highway S-38-1604 with Mr. L. M. Rhodes. CITY COUNCIL MINUTES NOVEMBER 3, 1987 PAGE 2

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously ratified the resolution awarding the low bid of \$1,099,442 to G&P Incorporated for improvements to the Department of Public Utilities Sanitary Sewer System--Project No. 83084 on December 4, 1986.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted, Carol A. Brunson

City Clerk

# 350

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Orangeburg, State of South Carolina, on January 12, 1954, established the Department of Public Utilities for the City of Orangeburg, and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the purchasing procedures adopted by said City Council on June 21, 1983, the Manager of the Department of Public Utilities was given authority to purchase or contract for all services and materials needed by said Department with the exception of day-to-day supplies, and

WHEREAS, annually the City Council is advised as to capital improvement projects, and

WHEREAS, based upon competitive bids a low bid submitted for improvements to the Department's sanitary sewer system, Project No. 83084, was awarded to G&P, Inc., on December 4, 1986, and

WHEREAS, the formal acceptance and awarding of said bid has been questioned by G&P, Inc., and

WHEREAS, City Council wishes to clarify any discrepancies therein,

BE IT RESOLVED by Council duly assembled this 3rd day of November, 1987, that the awarding of the low bid in the amount of \$1,099,442.00 to G&P, Inc., for improvements to the Department of Public Utilities' sanitary sewer system, Project No. 83084, on December 4, 1986, by the Department of Public Utilities acting through its manager, Ted M. Johnson, Jr., is hereby ratified and all acts of the said Ted M. Johnson, Jr., in connection therewith, are effective as of the date of each act.

DONE AND RATIFIED by City Council for the City of Orangeburg, State of South Carolina, this 3rd day of November, 1987.

1/4 Members of Council

ATTES

Clerk and Treasurer

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES NOVEMBER 17, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on November 17, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

> PRESENT: E. O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Henry F. Frierson Sara H. Alexander Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

N 0

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved the November 3, 1987 City Council Minutes as distributed.

An appearance was made by Mr. Jim Headley, Executive Director of the South Carolina Recreation and Parks Society. He presented a plaque to Parks and Recreation Director, Marion J. Smith and Golf Course Manager, Thomas J. Vargo for their assistance in hosting the 1987 golf tournament for the South Carolina Recreation and Parks Society. Mr. Headley also informed council that Mr. Marion J. Smith is the 1988-89 president-elect for the South Carolina Recreation and Parks Society.

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the third reading of an ordinance to amend the 1987-88 budget.

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the second reading of an ordinance for the sale of land (as amended) at 130 Hampton Street, SE. City Administrator Smith informed council that this was the same party but the name had changed.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the second reading of an ordinance on the following.

- a. Consideration of rezoning request from "A-2 Residential" to "Office-Institutional-Apartments" (Amelia Street)
- b. Consideration of classification request to classify "B-1 Business" (Prince of Orange property located on Hwy 178)

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved the second reading of an ordinance to amend the 1987-88 budget to be changed from 49 mills to 46 mills.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the bid from G.M.R. for \$3,960.00 to purchase gymnastic equipment.

City Administrator Smith submitted a report to council from the Public Safety Director, Eugene A. Brant, reporting on the condition of the fire equipment. He stated that \$11,350.00 is needed for repairs on eight (8) trucks. This will cause the line item in the budget to be over at the end of the year. Assistant Chief, Ralph LaFrance, reported on the state of the equipment and what was needed to make the repairs. A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved to authorize City Administrator Smith and Public Safety Director Brant to do whatever is necessary to get the equipment in first class condition. 352 NOVEMBER 17, 1987 PAGE 2

Public Safety Director, Brant, made the following report to council.

FIRE DEPARTMENT

28 -- Committed to cross train 4 -- Do not wish to cross train 1 -- Undecided 1 -- On leave (sick) <u>1</u> -- Resigning 35 -- Total fire employees

### POLICE DEPARTMENT

30 out of 33 --committed to cross train (in agreement to working 24 hours on--48 hours off)

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Mayor Pendarvis, unanimously approved to accept Mr. E. O. Hudson's generous offer to allow the city to place the public safety radio antenna on his property with the city only having to pay the utility bill. The other alternative would have been to re-locate at a cost of approximately \$10,000.00.

City Administrator Smith informed council that we are eligible to apply for rehabilitation funds available from the Governor's office. This money is to be used to upgrade rental units in under privileged areas of the city and up to \$5,000 would be available for each individual property with the land owner matching these funds. A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved for City Administrator Smith to apply for the \$50,000.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved to give Ted Johnson, DPU Manager, the authority to enter into settlement on the following litigation:

- 1. \$50,000 to G & P Construction Company of Florence for approximately 91% of the bid bond
- 2. Not quite half of \$68,000 for roof repairs at DPU

Regarding Department of Public Utilities Matters, a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the third reading of an ordinance to exchange property at Highway S-38-1604 with Mr. L. M. Rhodes.

Department of Public Utilities Manager, Ted Johnson, reported on the new Peak Shavings Generator Plant which the city had issued 4.5 million dollars in revenue bonds in 1985. The total cost of this facility was 5.5 million dollars and was completed this year. Mr. Johnson stated that DPU had realized a savings over a period of four (4) months of \$282,000 with anticipation of an annual savings of \$767,000. Because of these savings and pending rate reduction from South Carolina Electric and Gas, Department of Public Utilities customers will probably receive a rate reduction in December, 1987.

An appearance was made by Mr. Blanchard McDaniel of the 300 block of Windsor Street concerning some young people using obscene language and littering the area while playing football in a vacant lot near his home. CITY COUNCIL MINUTES NOVEMBER 17, 1987 PAGE 3

 $\mathbb{O}$ 

**ABB13** 

An appearance was made by Mr. Macon Sheppard in reference to Mr. Johnson's earlier presentation. He stated that it was good to see profits from the Peak Shavings Generator Plant but these profits would be benefitting mostly people outside of the city. Mr. Sheppard stated that council should represent the citizens of Orangeburg and not the customers of DPU. He was not complaining about a rate reduction but due to the fact that the city recently depleted its reserve funds of approximately 1.5 million dollars to balance the 1987-88 budget, council should be sure that their own house is in order before granting a rate reduction to DPU customers. He said that council's main objective should be to look out for the financial assets of the city. DPU Manager, Ted Johnson, said that the city should remain competitive and should not milk the customers in the outside areas for the benefit of the citizens of Orangeburg.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully/submitted, Brunson City Clerk

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on December 1, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

> PRESENT: E. O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Henry F. Frierson Sara H. Alexander Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

A motion by Councilmember Bradley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the November 17, 1987 City Council Minutes as distributed.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the third reading of an ordinance for the sale of land at 130 Hampton Street, SE.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the third reading of an ordinance on the following:

- a. Consideration of rezoning request from "A-2 Residential" to "Office-Institutional-Apartments" (Amelia Street)
- b. Consideration of classification request to classify B-1 Business" (Prince of Orange property located on Highway 178)

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved the third reading of an ordinance to amend the 1987-88 Budget for millage rate purposes. This was a change from 49 mills to 46 mills.

City Administrator Smith commented on the traffic light report on the corner of US Route 178 (Columbia Road) and Road S-205 (Bennett Avenue). The SC Department of Highways and Public Transportation does not feel that a traffic light is warranted. City Administrator Smith asked council for any further suggestions and it was decided to postpone this matter until the December 15th meeting.

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved the Employee's Barbecue Dinner on December 16th at Noon as well as a \$25.00 gift certificate to each employee. A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, unanimously approved to give City Administrator Smith the authority to approve the bids on the above items.

A motion by Mayor Pendarvis, seconded by Councilmember Frierson, unanimously approved the low bid of \$9,550.83 from state purchasing for a four door sedan for the Public Works Department (Building Inspection Division).

Department of Public Utilities Manager, Ted Johnson, brought no utility matters before council.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted,

Carol A. Brunson City Clerk

#### CITY COUNCIL MINUTES DECEMBER 15, 1987

Orangeburg City Council held its regularly scheduled meeting on December 15, 1987 in City Hall Chambers at 7:00 P.M., Mayor Pendarvis presiding.

PRESENT: E. O. Pendarvis, Mayor W. Everette Salley, Mayor Pro Tem Henry F. Frierson Sara H. Alexander Herbert W. Bradley, Jr.

N M

D D J

A motion by Councilmember Alexander, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved the December 1, 1987 City Council Minutes as distributed.

Aetna Representatives, Eddie Reed and Jerry Brennecke made a presentation on hospitalization insurance renewal. They stated that the current year balance through October 1987 (-\$86,952) plus the prior year balance (-\$89,433) plus the deposit that the City made earlier this year (\$51,249) left us with a total of medical benefits deficit of \$125,136. Based on the City's experience \$289,185 would be needed to fund the premium at the current rates. A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Salley, seconded by Mayor Pendarvis agreed to accept this as information.

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved for the City Administrator to send a letter of certificate of need to Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional Hospital concerning Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI).

A motion by Councilmember Frierson, seconded by Councilmember Bradley, unanimously approved to accept the low bid of \$11,071.19 from Jones Chevrolet for the purchase of a 1988 four door sedan for the Parks & Recreation Department.

A motion by Councilmember Bradley, seconded by Councilmember Alexander, unanimously approved to accept the low bid of \$7,953.75 from Nu-Life Environmental Incorporation for the purchase of fifteen (15) front loading containers for the Public Works Department.

City Attorney James Walsh presented three (3) plans submitted by the plaintiffs in the suit against the City to change the election of council members from at-large to single-member districts. Council agreed to accept this as information and to study all alternatives.

Department of Public Utilities Manager, Ted Johnson, brought no utility matters before Council.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted,

Carol A. Brunson City Clerk